UNITED STATES DEPARIMENT OF EDUCATION
OFFICE FOR CIVIL RIGHTS
ATLANTA OFFICE. SOUTHERN DIVISION
61 FORSY'TH STREET, SW
SUITE 18770
ATLANTA, GEORGIA 3303

DEC 20 2002

Dear [PX7NE)

Rer Complaints #04-02-2101

The U, 8. Deparmment of Edusation {Department), Gifice for Civil Rights {OCR) has complered #1s
ivestigition of the shove-referenced complaint vou fied against Ezst Tepnesses State niversity
{Unlversity} alleging discrimination on the hasis sex. Sﬁgﬂm’_&_vﬁﬁ&”‘ﬂ'géd that vou were subjected
te sexual harsssment by a coach of the female wack toam, {ieack conchy and thet when you
complained about his condact to the Head Track and Figld Coach, head coach), you
ware trninmed from the wack team and the University.

bAFXC)

As g recipiont of Fedoral finarciz! assistance from the Departinent, the University is subject to the
pravisions of Tigh 1 of the Education Amendments of 1977 {(Title [X), as amended, 20 U500 Sections
1681 gt spy.. and its implementing regulation, 34 C.F.R. Tart 106, which prohibit discrinieation on the
basts of sex in programs and sctivities recelving Federal Tinancial assistance from the Department,
Accordingly, OUR has prisdiction over this complaint.

Allegation #1 - Sevun] Harassment

The Title EX regulation prohibiiions against discrimination are not Hmited to officid policies and
practices governing selhoo! programs and activities. A school also engages in sex-based discrimination if
its employees, in the context of carrying out their day-touday job responsibiliies for providing aid,
benefity, o7 servicss to stadents {such ag deaching, vounseling, supervising, and advisiny studenes) deny o
limit 2 student’s ability o participats in or benefit from the scloo! program on the busis of sew. Usder the
Title I regulations, the school is responsible for discrimination in these cases, whether or not &t knew or
shoult bave known sbout &, because the discriminsiion pocurred ag part of the schoal’s undestaking o
provide nondiseriminatory aid, benefits, and services 1o students,

When students who fre participating in a progrmn os activity opersted by an sducational nstiution are
e to sexual harsssment that constitutes a sexually hostile eavironment, $hey ase being limited in

enjoyment of 4 right on the basis of sex or they ate receiving treatment that s difterent from others on
the basis of sex. OCR generaily defines sexnaf harassment as con ng of eoweivome sexual wivances,
FEqUEsts for sexuat favors, other vorbal or physical conduct of & sesal nature, eiypmesed on the busis of
sex, that denies, Hmits, or provides difforent ald, benefits, services or opportinities protecied under Tile
X, or wonditions the provision of such aid, benelits, services, or opportunites. There are two vpes of
sexual harassmen: prohibired by Tite X (1) “quid pro aque” sexual herassment, where 2 sudent's
emtittement 1o, or enjoyment of, an educstional or employment benefit is explicihy or imphicitly
conditioned upon fat student’s submission o swuua advences, requests for sexual fevors, or other
semually based or physical conduct; and (2) “hostile environment™ sexim] harassment, where unweicome
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sexual advances, requests for sexual favors, o other sexuslly based verbal or physica! conduct hizs the
effeet of interfering with the student’s education or employment by creating an intimidating, hosilie, or
offensive sducational o work envirenment. The ltler form of sexua) harassment is at {ssus in this case.

In determining. the Unfversity's compliance with the Tie [ regutation, OCR collectd wnd anabyred
information to estalilish; {1) Whether the complairants were subjected 16 2 sexuatly hostile environment,
whick Invelves determinations as wo {a) whether there was sexual harassinent, and () i so, whether the
sexual harassmern was sufficiently severe, persislent, or pervasive as to interfere with or fimit the abiliry
of the students o paricipate in ar benefit from the services, activitios or privileges by the University, (2}
Whether the University had ar should have had notice of the harassment; {3y Whether the Universizy took
prompt and effective action t stop the sexus! hamssiment sfter i had notice of the harzssment: ardd {4}
Whether the Usiversily took prompt and effective zerion &0 remedy any discrimipatory effects caused by
the sexual hasagsment.

Based on ap anelysis of the evidence gathered, OCR has concluded that a sexvatly hostile environment
existed ond that the University had notics of the sexually harssing condact, which vielated the repulytion
implementing Tide IX. However, by the time OCR conducied its investimation, the University had
already taken comective action to end the sexual harassment, prevent its recurrence and remsody ity effecis.
QCR, therefore, concludes that thee University has appropriately resolved this issue, The bases for our
determination are outhized below.

Yeou spreifically alfcped that the track coach regulusty made telephone calls to your dormitery room and
wade mapproprise sonmments of 2 sexua! nature, discussed his personal sexual mlationships, addressed
you by affectionate terms, and that he often touched and rubbed vour shealders when vou visited his
office, You costended that you complained to the track coaeh that his conduct was offoasive, Dut that you
did not file a furmal sexus! harsssment complaint with the University. You indicated, howsver, that you
made an otal compiain io the head coach about the Track coach’s conduet on Pebruary 13, 2002, and tha
you provided 1o him, as evidence of the track eosch’s conduct, copies of ¢-mails the track coach and
another femule athiete had sent to cach other.

OCR considers a varisty of refmed factors to determing if 2 hostile envicomment has been created, ie,, if
sexually harassing ponduct by #n employee is sufficlently serious that it denics or Hmits student’s ability
t participaie 1 or benefil from the school’s program based on sex. OCR considers the condust from
voll: subjertive and objective perspective. In evalpating the severity and pervasiveness of the condusi,
QUER considers all relevant circumstange, Le., the oopstellation of surrcurding  clroumstances,
expeciations and relationships. The factor eonsidered in this case, mvolving sllegstons of the sexug)
harassment of students by & Universily employee, i the identity of and relaticsship between the alleged
harassur and the subjects of the havassment. For example, dug 1o the power g professor o (eacher has over
@ student, senually based conduct by ther person toward a student is more fikely 10 create 2 hostile
environment than shmilar condoet by a student,

A review of the contents of the v-muil messages berwsen e traek cosch and @ fermale shudent, who was
alser oo the tack team, supported your allegation that the track coach's conduet would be considered
sewual barzssment. These e-malls, which were exchanged during the fall and winter seinasters, clearly
established ta the tack conch had pursued a romantic relationsfip with ene of kis female alioes.
These messages sigo contained information indicating that track cosch’s overures were nob initiatly
welcomed by this studeny, that the relatienship which evemually developed resulted in different trestment
for this student that fad a negative Impact on the Track program, and that the e-mall messages contained
negative comments abowl you aad another complainant.  One of these e-mail messapes also included
information that appears o support the ablegation that the track coach discussed a st rormantic
relationship with vou. Punther, the University’s letter of wrmination w the wack coach confirmed that
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there was sufficient evidence that he had engaged in inappropriste and sexually harmusing conduct with
students. Based ou these findings, OCR conchsled thar the sexual conduss engaged in by ihe wack coach
was sufficiently severe, pervasive and persistent as fo imterfere with the complainants” ability to
partivipate in the University’s athletic program en a nondiscriminatory basis and to constiture a sexualy
hostile environment ia violation of the regulation implementing Title IX at 34 CF R, Section 10617 (a),
which generally prohibits sex discriminution in education prograns and activities.

We determined, however, that by immediately terminating the track coach os February 14, 2002, and
providing counseling services to the student athiete that was directly Involved with the track coach, the
University took prompt end effective steps to ond the sexual harassment, prevent s recurnence and
remedy i sffocts. White the University did not provide sounseling to other students o the trmek toarm,
our Inmterviews with oer rack team panicipants did not indicate that sueh services were necessary, In
adtition to this, the University conducted a specific workshop on sexual harassment for amployees in the
Athletics depariment on March 13, 2002, OCR also determined that the University has adeguateh
published effective gricvancs procedires for the prompt and cquitable resolutian of complaing of sexpal
harassment and published information about its Title IX coordinator in compiiance with the Thie 1¥
implementing regulation at 24 C.F R, Séction 106.8 {a) and (b).

Allepation #7 - Retalivtion

You wlso alleged that in retalistion for your report of the track coach's corduct, you were suspendad fom
e track tearn md subsequently rerminated from the Usiversity.

The regulstion implementing Titte VI at 34 CER. Section 10070} states that no recipiost or ofher
person shall imimidaw, threaten, cocrss or discriminate against any individual for the purpose of
intesfering with any right or poivilege secured by Title VI or becauss he has made 3 cemplaing wstlfied,
assistpd, or participated in any manner in an investigation, proceeding or hearing vader this part. The
Tide [ reguiation at 34 CF R, Section 106.71 ncorporates by reference this provision of Tite VI

Ter establish retalistion, QCR must determine whether: (1) the individual engaged in a protected activity,
{2) the recipient was aware of the protecied activity, (3) the rocipient took adverse action against the
ndividual, (4) thare was 2 cavsal connection between the adverss action and the profecied activity, and
{5} the recipient cannol show legitimate, nondiscriminatory reasons for its action. Based on our
mvestigation, we found insefficient evidenes 1o support that you were subjested to retalintion. Cur
findings regarding this issue are sot forth befow,

You engaged in prowcied activities when you reported the track cdach’s conduct *0 the head coach on
February 13, 2002, While the University acknowledged that vou reported the sexuatly harassing conduet
anrd that vou were suspended from the rrack tear, evidence regarding this adverse action showed that vou
were suspended on Febouary 11, 2002, prior to the time you made the formal mpurt to te head coach,
Basyd on these facts, you were subjected 1o the adverse action prior t the time you engaged in the
prowected setivites, and there was o causal connection belween the adverse action and the provected
aelivity. We atse determined that you were suspended for missing classes and practice sessions during
the period of February 8-10,2002. Althongh vow contend that you were suspended beoruse of input from
the track conch, after he overbeard vou and & teammate diseussing the e-mails during 2 practive session
prior o Fabruiary 11, 2002, infermation from 1he University supparted that you had previousty missed
praciics sessions. In fact, vou had signed a statement acknowledging that missiag one more practice for
reasorss ot refgted iy schoolwosk wolld reslt in being dismissed from the feam. A copy of this satersent
indicated that vou signed i on November 26, 2001, In addition to this, the other fwo sindents that were
named o5 being treated differently indicared 10 OCR during interviews that they were not absent from the
University during the period of February §-10, 2002
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The evidence also showed that you were 3ot terminatod from the University, aad were eligible to remain
erzolbed as a student. On March 18, 2002, you were also eligible to be reinstated 1o the wack team. with
the condition that you Sign a reinstatemen! agreement.  However, you declined to sien because yeu
disagreed with the terms of the sgreement.

in addition to this, you were reporied to the campus police on March 26, 2002, for allegedly murassing
ewo fellow wammmates by throwing rocks ar thelr windows and using profane lznguage. Although vou
were gifieially delewd from the track team and ordered 1o leave the stident athleie housing, you wore
subsequently reassigred fo apother dormitory snd were elipible for confinued emroliment i the
University. Based on these facts, CCR determined that there is insufficient evidencs to support the vour
aliegation that you were terminated from the track tewr: and the University in remtistion for reporting the
sexually harassing conduct of the rack conch.

Thank you for your cooperation during our investigation of this matter. Fvow hiave any guestions pleaze
contact My, Juliette Svoman, Bqual Opporfunity Specialist at (404} 362-63835.

Sigcerely,

Brenda Nifornh
Team Leader



